No securities regulatory authority has expressed an opinion about these securities and it is an offence to claim otherwise.

SIMPLIFIED PROSPECTUS

May 21, 2024

BARRANTAGH SMALL CAP CANADIAN EQUITY FUND

Offering Series A Units, Series F Units and Series O Units

Table of Contents

	Page
Introduction	1
Responsibility for Fund Operations	2
Conflicts of Interest	7
Fund Governance	7
Remuneration of Directors, Officers and Trustees	9
Material Contracts	9
Designated Website	9
Valuation of Portfolio Securities	9
Calculation of Net Asset Value	10
Purchases, Switches and Redemptions	11
Units of the Fund	11
Purchasing Units of the Fund	11
Switch Rights	12
Redeeming Units of the Fund	13
Short Term Trading	14
Non-resident Unitholders	15
Fees and Expenses	15
Fees and Expenses Payable by the Fund	15
Fees and Expenses Payable Directly by Unitholders	16
Impact of Sales Charges	17
Dealer Compensation	17
How Your Investment Professional and Dealer are Paid	17
Income Tax Considerations	18
Status of the Fund	19
Taxation of the Fund	19
Taxation of Individual Unitholders	21
Units Held in Registered Plans	23
International Information Reporting	24
What Are Your Legal Rights?	25
Certificate of the Fund and the Manager and Promoter	C-1
Specific Information About Barrantagh Small Cap Canadian Equity Fund	1

Introduction

This Simplified Prospectus contains selected important information to help you make an informed investment decision and to help you understand your rights as an investor.

In this Simplified Prospectus, the "**Fund**" means the Barrantagh Small Cap Canadian Equity Fund. "**We**", "**us**", "**our**" and "**Barrantagh**" mean Barrantagh Investment Management Inc., the manager, trustee and portfolio advisor of the Fund.

"Units" refers to the Series A Units, Series F Units or the Series O Units and "Unitholder" refers to a holder of Units. We calculate a net asset value (the "NAV") for each series and for each Unit of the series (the "NAV per Unit").

References to time are to local time in Toronto, Ontario. A "**Trading Day**" is any day that the Toronto Stock Exchange is open for trading for the full day.

This Simplified Prospectus contains information about the Fund and the risks of investing in mutual funds generally, as well as the names of the firms responsible for the management and administration of the Fund. Additional information about the Fund is available in the following documents:

- the most recently filed Fund Facts,
- the most recently filed annual financial statements of the Fund,
- any interim financial statements of the Fund which are filed after those annual financial statements are filed,
- the most recently filed annual management report of fund performance of the Fund ("MRFP"), and
- any interim MRFP which is filed after that annual MRFP.

These documents are incorporated by reference into this Simplified Prospectus, which means that they are legally part of this document, just as if they were printed as a part of this document. You can get a copy of these documents, at your request and at no cost, by calling us toll free at 1-833-246-8468, by contacting us by email at info@barrantagh.com or by writing to us at 100 Yonge Street, Suite 1700, Toronto, Ontario M5C 2W1, or from your dealer. These documents and other information about the Fund are also available on our website at www.Barrantagh.com or at www.sedarplus.com.

Responsibility for Fund Operations

Barrantagh

Barrantagh will perform or arrange for the performance of management services for the Fund, will be responsible for the administration of the Fund and will act as the investment fund manager of the Fund pursuant to the Declaration (as defined herein). Barrantagh will be entitled to receive fees as compensation for management services rendered to the Fund. The principal office of Barrantagh is located at 100 Yonge Street, Suite 1700, Toronto, Ontario M5C 2W1. See "- Duties and Services to be Provided by Barrantagh" below.

The name and municipality of residence of the directors and executive officers of Barrantagh and their principal occupations are as follows:

Name and Municipality of Residence	Position with Barrantagh and Principal Occupation
Walter Kusters Oakville, ON	President and CEO Ultimate Designated Person Director
Joe D'Angelo Toronto, ON	VP PM Global Equities Director
John Vinnai Toronto, ON	VP PM Canadian Equities Director
Marino Scarmozzino Kleinburg, ON	VP Finance and Administration Chief Compliance Officer Director

Each of the foregoing individuals has held his or her current office or has held a senior position with Barrantagh or an affiliate of Barrantagh during the five years preceding the date hereof, except Joe D'Angelo, who started with Barrantagh in December 2015, and Marino Scarmozzino, who started with Barrantagh in February 2016. The following are brief biographies of the directors and executive officers of Barrantagh.

Walter Kusters

Walter Kusters brings to his role as President and CEO the benefits of his successful experience managing several billions of dollars in equity and balanced portfolios. His career spans over 20 years working in portfolio management, investment analysis, and merger and acquisition valuation.

Walter's background includes research and analysis for the management of equity assets for Mutual Life (now Sun Life), and the active management of Noranda Inc.'s pension plans.

At Trimark Investment Management Inc., Walter was responsible for the management of the company's well-regarded balanced funds. More recently, he was a Chief Investment Officer for CI Funds. His value-oriented management style has led to top-quartile performance by both Canadian balanced and Canadian equity mutual funds.

Walter earned an undergraduate degree in Engineering and an MBA from Queen's University, and is a CFA charter holder. Walter's experience and discipline make him an invaluable member of Barrantagh's investment team.

Joe D'Angelo

Joe D'Angelo brings over 23 years of investment experience to his role as Portfolio Manager for Barrantagh, where he is responsible for our global equity mandates.

Prior to joining Barrantagh, Joe was a Vice President, Portfolio Manager with Signature Global Asset Management of CI Investments, where he spent over 17 years of his career analyzing global companies within various sectors for all of Signature's global equity mandates. In addition, he was Co-manager of the Signature Diversified Yield, High Income, and International funds. Prior to CI, Joe worked in business valuations where he analyzed companies within a variety of sectors.

Joe holds the Chartered Financial Analyst designation, a B.A. in Economics from York University and an M.A. in Economics from the University of Toronto.

John Vinnai

John Vinnai brings over 9 years of investment industry experience to his Portfolio Manager role.

At Barrantagh, John is responsible for managing the successful Canadian, specialty resource, and oil & gas equity portfolios.

John began his investment career as an Institutional Equity Research Associate on the Canaccord Adams (now Canaccord Genuity) team prior to joining Barrantagh as an Equity Analyst.

John received his Engineering degree from Queen's University, his Master of Business Administration degree from the Richard Ivey School of Business, and is a CFA charter holder.

Marino Scarmozzino

Marino Scarmozzino has been in the financial services industry for over 20 years. His strong management and organizational skills ensure that Barrantagh operates efficiently and delivers the highest quality of client service and financial management.

Marino manages Barrantagh's day-to-day business activities including the office staff. He has overall responsibility for finance, operations, human resources and client administration services.

Marino was formerly Chief Operating Officer at AIG Asset Management Canada with over \$6 billion in assets under administration. During his time at AIG he was responsible for finance, operations, reporting and compliance.

Marino brings the same level of skill and dedication to the administrative aspects of our clients' accounts as our investment team brings to the management of their assets.

Marino has obtained the Chartered Professional Accountant (CPA, CGA) designation.

Duties and Services to be Provided by Barrantagh

Pursuant to the Declaration, Barrantagh is the trustee, manager and portfolio advisor of the Fund and, as such, is responsible for providing, or arranging for the provision of, managerial, administrative and compliance services to the Fund. Administrative services include, without limitation: authorizing the payment of operating expenses incurred on behalf of the Fund; preparing financial statements and financial and accounting information as required by the Fund; ensuring that Unitholders are provided with financial statements (including interim and annual financial statements) and other reports as are required by applicable law from time to time; ensuring that the Fund comply with regulatory requirements; preparing the Fund's reports to Unitholders and the Canadian securities regulatory authorities; determining the amount of any distributions to be made by the Fund; negotiating contractual agreements with third party providers of services, including custodians, registrars, transfer agents, fund accountants, auditors and printers; and arranging for any payment required on or about the date of termination of the Fund.

Barrantagh is required to exercise its powers and discharge its duties as manager of the Fund honestly, in good faith and in the best interests of the Fund and Unitholders, and, in connection therewith, to exercise the degree of care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent manager would exercise in similar circumstances.

As manager and trustee of the Fund, Barrantagh (or any replacement thereof) must at all times be a resident of Canada for the purposes of the *Income Tax Act* (Canada) (the "**Tax Act**") and carry out its functions of managing the funds in Canada. In addition, Barrantagh (or any replacement thereof) must at all times exercise the main powers and discretions of the trustee in respect of the Fund in Canada.

Barrantagh is entitled to the fees described under "Fees and Expenses" and will be reimbursed for all reasonable costs and expenses incurred on behalf of the Fund. In addition, Barrantagh and each of its directors, officers, employees and agents will be indemnified by the Fund from and against all legal fees, judgements and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by Barrantagh in connection with the services provided by Barrantagh to the Fund unless those fees, judgements and amounts paid in settlement were incurred or suffered as a result of a breach by Barrantagh of its standard of care under the Declaration and provided the Fund has reasonable grounds to believe that the action or inaction that caused the payment of the fee, judgment or amount paid in settlement was in the best interests of the Fund.

As portfolio adviser, Barrantagh manages the Fund's portfolio assets. Walter Kusters, the President and CEO of Barrantagh, is principally responsible for day-to-day management of the portfolio. Mr. Kusters has been with the firm since 2002. During his tenure he has been responsible for the strategic growth of the firm including oversight of client investment activity as well as the sales, service and marketing aspects for both private and institutional clients.

The administration and management services of Barrantagh under the Declaration are not exclusive and nothing prevents Barrantagh from providing similar administrative and management services to other investment funds and other clients (whether or not their investment objectives and strategies are similar to those of the Fund) or from engaging in other activities.

Brokerage Arrangements

Barrantagh utilizes various brokers to effect securities transactions on behalf of the Fund. These brokers may directly provide Barrantagh with research and related services including advice, both directly and in writing, as to the value of the securities; the availability of securities, or purchasers or sellers of securities; as well as analysis and reports concerning issuers, industries, securities, economic factors and trends. Although the Fund may not benefit equally from the research and related service received from a broker, Barrantagh will endeavour to ensure that the Fund receives an equitable benefit over time.

Barrantagh maintains a list of brokers that have been approved to effect securities transactions on behalf of the Fund. When determining whether a broker should be added to that list there are numerous factors that are considered including: (a) its reliability, (b) the quality of its execution services on a continuing basis, and (c) its financial condition. When more than one dealer is believed to meet these criteria, preference may be given to dealers who provide research or statistical materials or other services to the Fund or to Barrantagh.

Approved brokers are monitored on a regular basis to ensure that the value of the goods and services, as outlined above, provides a reasonable benefit as compared to the amount of brokerage commissions paid for the goods and services. In conducting this analysis, Barrantagh considers the use of the goods and services, execution quality in terms of trade impact and the ability to achieve the target benchmark price, as well as the amount of brokerage commissions paid relative to other brokers and the market in general.

Additional information including the services supplied by each broker can be obtained at no cost by contacting Barrantagh at info@barrantagh.com.

Directors, Executive Officers and Trustees

As a trust, the Fund does not have directors or executive officers. Barrantagh acts as the Fund's trustee under the Declaration.

Custodian

Pursuant to the Custodian Agreement, RBC Investor Services Trust is the custodian of the assets of the Fund. The address of the Custodian is 155 Wellington Street West, 10th Floor, Toronto, ON M5V 3L3, Canada. Barrantagh, on behalf of the Fund, or the Custodian may terminate the Custodian Agreement upon at least 90 days' written notice or immediately in the event of a bankruptcy event in respect of a party that is not cured within 30 days. Barrantagh, on behalf of the Fund, may terminate the Custodian Agreement immediately if the Custodian ceases to be qualified to act as a custodian of the Fund under applicable law. The Custodian is entitled to receive fees from the Fund and to be reimbursed for all expenses and liabilities that are properly incurred by the Custodian in connection with the activities of the Fund.

Securities Lending Agent

The Fund does not currently engage in securities lending. In the event that the Fund engages in securities lending, Barrantagh will appoint a securities lending agent for the Fund. The securities lending agent will not be an affiliate of Barrantagh.

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants of Toronto, Ontario, is the

auditor of the Fund.

Registrar and Valuation Agent

RBC Investor Services Trust, at its offices in Toronto, Ontario, acts as the Fund's registrar and provides services in relation to the valuation of the Fund's assets.

Independent Review Committee

National Instrument 81-107 *Independent Review Committee for Investment Funds* ("**NI 81-107**") requires all publicly offered investment funds, such as the Fund, to establish an independent review committee. The independent review committee is required to be comprised of a minimum of three members, each of whom must be independent of Barrantagh, entities related to Barrantagh and the Fund.

Barrantagh has appointed Gerry Throop (Chairman), Chris Enright and Gary Grad to the independent review committee. The following are brief biographies provided by the members of the independent review committee:

Gerry Throop

Mr. Throop currently serves as Director and Chair of the Audit Committee for Ceridian HCM Holding Inc. (NYSE, TSX), and as Director of NASDAQ Canada Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of NASDAQ Stock Market Inc. Since 2011, Mr. Throop has worked independently as a private equity investor, director, and advisor to early stage companies. Prior to 2011, he spent 17 years in executive leadership positions in the securities and banking industry, including the position of executive vice president, managing director, and head of equities for both National Bank of Canada and Merrill Lynch Canada. Mr. Throop has served as either a member of the Board of Directors or the Chief Financial Officer of several companies that were Toronto Stock Exchange listed at the time of his service, including Workbrain Corporation, Toronto Stock Exchange, Call-Net Enterprises/Sprint Canada Inc., and Tie Telecommunications Canada Limited. Mr. Throop is a Chartered Public Accountant.

Chris Enright

Mr. Enright is currently the President and Managing Director of Aligned Capital Partners Inc., (ACPI) a securities dealer founded in 1999. He has been an active member within the securities industry in various capacities since 1994. Mr. Enright was appointed Senior Vice-President, Wealth Management Distribution at Industrial Alliance Insurance & Financial Services Inc. from 2010 to 2012, where he was responsible for overseeing one of the largest distribution networks in Canada. This network included Industrial Alliance Securities Inc. (a nationally registered securities dealer and IIROC Member) and Industrial Alliance's Mutual Fund Broker/Dealer network consisting of three subsidiaries: FundEX Investments Inc., Investia Financial Services Inc., and National Financial Insurance Agency (a national managing general insurance agent). Prior to Mr. Enright's role at Industrial Alliance, he was the Executive Vice-President of FundEx from 2006 to 2009, and Managing Director & Co-Founder of FundTrade Financial Corp. from 1999 to 2006; at which time the company was acquired by Industrial Alliance. Preceding his executive tenure, Mr. Enright's career highlights include the President of Inter-Equity Asset Management from 1997 to 1999, and Financial Advisor from 1994 to 1997.

Gary Grad

Mr. Grad retired from the investment industry in 2018 after a 29-year career. Prior to his retirement, he served as the Chief Investment Officer for CIBC Asset Management. In this role, Mr. Grad was responsible for leading a team of almost 100 investment management professionals managing more than \$50 billion across equity, fixed income, currency and multi-asset mandates. Prior to this role, he was the Managing Director of Investment Management Research where his team managed a line-up of more than 50 investment managers who managed more than \$60 billion for CIBC clients. Mr. Grad also spent nine years as a vice-president at Fidelity Canada where he managed various product support teams. In these roles, he established strong relationships with Fidelity investment teams world-wide. Mr. Grad began his career as an equity analyst at Mutual Life (now Sun Life). He earned his CFA designation in 1989. In 2018 he completed the NFA, National Commodity Futures Series 3 exam. Mr. Grad is a graduate of the Ivey Business School where he received an Honors Business Administration degree in 1986.

For a further description of the mandate and responsibilities of the IRC, see "Fund Governance".

Conflicts of Interest

Affiliated Entities

No affiliates of Barrantagh provide services to the Fund.

Fund Governance

Independent Review Committee

The mandate of the IRC is to review conflict of interest matters identified and referred to the IRC by Barrantagh and to give an approval or a recommendation, depending on the nature of the conflict of interest matter. At all times, the members of the IRC are required to act honestly and in good faith and in the best interests of the Fund and, in connection therewith, to exercise the degree of care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances.

Barrantagh has established written policies and procedures for dealing with each conflict of interest matter. At least annually, the IRC will review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of Barrantagh's written policies and procedures relating to conflict of interest matters and will conduct a self-assessment of the IRC's independence, compensation and effectiveness.

Barrantagh will maintain records of all matters and/or activities subject to the review of the IRC, including a copy of Barrantagh's written policies and procedures dealing with conflict of interest matters, minutes of IRC meetings, and copies of materials, including any written reports, provided to the IRC. Barrantagh will also provide the IRC with assistance and information sufficient for the IRC to carry out its responsibilities under NI 81-107.

The members of the IRC are entitled to be compensated by the Fund and reimbursed for all reasonable costs and expenses for the duties they perform as IRC members. In addition, the members of the IRC are entitled to be indemnified by the Fund, except in cases of willful misconduct, bad faith, negligence or breach of their standard of care.

The independent review committee report to Barrantagh and Unitholders will be available without charge on the Fund's website at www.Barrantagh.com, on SEDAR+ at www.sedarplus.com, or upon request to Barrantagh by calling toll-free at 1-833-246-8468.

Compensation for members of the independent review committee in respect of the Fund is currently \$15,000 per annum for the Chairman and \$10,000 per annum for each other member and is payable by the Fund.

Securities Lending

The Fund may engage in securities lending transactions, as permitted by applicable securities legislation. In the event that the Fund engages in securities lending, Barrantagh will appoint a securities lending agent for the Fund pursuant to a securities lending agreement.

Derivatives, Short Selling and Fund of Fund Transactions

The Fund does not intend to use derivatives or engage in short selling. The Fund will not purchase or hold securities of other mutual funds.

Proxy Voting Provisions

Barrantagh has established policies and procedures with respect to the voting of proxies (the "Proxy Voting Guidelines") received from issuers of securities held in the Fund's portfolio. The Proxy Voting Guidelines provide that Barrantagh will vote (or refrain from voting) proxies for each Fund for which it has voting power in the best economic interests of the Fund. The Proxy Voting Guidelines are not exhaustive and due to the variety of proxy voting issues that Barrantagh may be required to consider, are intended only to provide guidance and are not intended to dictate how proxies are to be voted in each instance. Barrantagh may depart from the Proxy Voting Guidelines in order to avoid voting decisions that may be contrary to the best interests of the Fund.

The proxies associated with securities held by the Fund will be voted in accordance with the best interests of Unitholders of the Fund determined at the time the vote is cast. Barrantagh maintains policies and procedures that are designed to be guidelines for the voting of proxies; however, each vote is ultimately cast on a case-by-case basis taking into consideration the relevant facts and circumstances at the time of the vote.

Barrantagh's proxy voting policies and procedures set out various considerations that Barrantagh will address when voting, or refraining from voting, proxies, including that:

- (a) Barrantagh will generally vote with management on routine matters such as electing corporate directors, appointing external auditors and adopting or amending management compensation plans unless it is determined that supporting management's position would not be in the best interests of the Unitholders;
- (b) Barrantagh will address on a case-by-case basis, non-routine matters, including those business issues specific to the issuer or those raised by securityholders of the issuer with a focus on the potential impact of the vote on the NAV of the Fund; and
- (c) Barrantagh has the discretion whether or not to vote on routine or non-routine matters. In cases where Barrantagh determines that it is not in the best interests of the Unitholders to vote, or in cases where no value is added by voting, Barrantagh will not be required to vote.

Barrantagh has procedures in place to identify potential conflicts of interest. When Barrantagh becomes aware of any vote that presents a conflict, Barrantagh must vote such proxy question in a manner consistent with, and uninfluenced by considerations other than, the best interest of the Fund and its Unitholders.

Barrantagh will post the proxy voting record on www.Barrantagh.com no later than August 31 of each year. Barrantagh will send the most recent copy of the proxy voting policies and procedures and proxy voting record, without charge, to any Unitholder upon a request made by the Unitholders.

Short Term Trading

The Fund has made no arrangements with any person to permit the short-term trading of Units. A short term trading fee is charged if Units are redeemed within 60 days of purchase. See "Fees and Expenses".

Remuneration of Directors, Officers and Trustees

The Fund, as a trust, has no directors or officers. Barrantagh is entitled to the management fees disclosed herein. None of Barrantagh's directors or officers receive any compensation directly from the Fund.

Material Contracts

The following contracts can reasonably be regarded as material to purchasers of Units of the Fund:

- (a) the Declaration referred to under "Name, Formation and History of the Fund"; and
- (b) the Custodian Agreement referred to under "Responsibility for Fund Operations The Custodian".

Copies of the foregoing agreements may be examined during normal business hours at the principal office of Barrantagh, and are available on SEDAR+ at www.sedarplus.com

Designated Website

A mutual fund is required to post certain regulatory disclosure documents on a designated website. The designated website of the Fund this document pertains to can be found at the following location: www.Barrantagh.com. These documents and other information about the Fund, such as information circulars and material contracts, are also available at www.sedarplus.com.

Valuation of Portfolio Securities

In determining the NAV of each series of the Fund, the value of all securities, property and assets of the Fund (the "Fund Property") shall be determined in accordance with the requirements of Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and any applicable requirements of law, and the following principles:

(a) the value of any cash on hand or on deposit or on call, bills and notes, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, cash dividends declared or interest accrued and not

yet received shall be deemed to be the face amount thereof unless Barrantagh shall have determined that any such bill, note, account receivable, prepaid expense or interest accrued is not worth the face amount thereof, in which event the value thereof shall be deemed to be such value as Barrantagh shall deem to be the reasonable value thereof;

- (b) securities listed on a stock exchange shall be valued at their fair market value on the relevant Valuation Date, and the value of any security that is listed or traded on more than one stock exchange or that is actively traded in the over-the-counter markets while being listed or traded on any stock exchange may, if Barrantagh so determines, be the market quotation that most accurately reflects the fair market value of the security in question;
- (c) the value of all other Fund Property shall be such value as Barrantagh determines most accurately reflects its fair value; and
- (d) all assets of the Fund valued in terms of foreign currency, funds on deposit and contractual obligations payable to the Fund in foreign currency and liabilities and contractual obligations payable by the Fund in foreign currency shall be valued at the applicable rate of exchange current at, or as nearly as practicable to, the time as of which the Net Asset Value is computed.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if applicable law requires the adoption by Barrantagh of some other method of valuation of the Fund Property or any part of it, such method will be adopted as if it were set forth in the Declaration, with effect as at the date as of which such requirement became applicable to the Fund; and in the event of any real or apparent conflict between the requirements of the law of two or more such jurisdictions, Barrantagh shall determine which requirements shall be adopted.

In compliance with the requirements for all Canadian investment entities, the Fund will prepare its financial statements in accordance with the IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. The framework for fair valuation as set out under the relevant sections of the IFRS Accounting Standards includes the requirement for the measurement and disclosure of fair value. If an asset or liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, the standard requires valuation to be based on a price within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value. The standard allows the use of midmarket pricing or other pricing conventions that are used by market participants as a practical means for fair value measurements within a bid-ask spread.

Each portfolio transaction will be reflected in the calculation of NAV per Unit no later than the calculation of NAV per Unit next made after the date on which the transaction becomes binding. The issue of Units will be reflected in the calculation of NAV per Unit next made after the issue date for such Units, which may be up to two trading days after the date that the subscription order for such Units is accepted. The redemption of Units will be reflected in the calculation of NAV per Unit next made after the redemption request is accepted.

Calculation of Net Asset Value

All transactions in Units of a series are based on the series NAV per Unit. We usually calculate the NAV for a series and a NAV per Unit on each Trading Day after the Toronto Stock Exchange closes, but in some circumstances, we may calculate it at another time (each day on which we

calculate NAVs is a "Valuation Date"). The NAVs can and generally will change daily. A separate NAV is calculated for each series of Units of the Fund. The issue and redemption price of Units is based on the Fund's NAV next determined after the receipt of a purchase order and a redemption order.

The NAV of each series of Units of the Fund is calculated as follows:

- (a) first, we determine the fair value of all of the investments and other assets allocated to a series (using the valuation principles discussed under "Valuation of Portfolio Securities" above);
- (b) second, we subtract the liabilities allocated to that series from the fair value of the assets attributable to such series. The difference between the fair value and the liabilities of a series is the NAV for that series; and
- (c) lastly, we divide the NAV for the series by the total number of Units of that series that investors in the Fund are holding, which gives us the NAV per Unit for that series of Units.

The NAV and NAV per Unit will be available without charge on the Fund's website at www.Barrantagh.com, or upon request to Barrantagh by calling toll-free at 1-833-246-8468.

Purchases, Switches and Redemptions

Units of the Fund

The Fund offers Series A Units, Series F Units and Series O Units. Each unit of a series of the Fund has the same value as another unit of the same series. The number of units of a series that may be issued is unlimited, unless we determine otherwise in our sole discretion. Each unit of a series ranks equally with every other unit of that series, except that holders of a fraction of a unit of a series of the Fund will not be entitled to vote at meetings of Unitholders of that series in respect of the fractional unit. Outstanding units of a series participate equally in distributions of the assets of the Fund to holders of that series on the termination of the Fund. We may at any time sub-divide or consolidate all units of a series that are outstanding, on notice to you. We do not issue Unit certificates.

Purchasing Units of the Fund

Series A Units are generally available to all investors. There are no sales charges when you purchase Series A Units. The minimum initial purchase of Series A Units is \$1,000 and subsequent investments must be at least \$200. A minimum account balance of \$600 must be maintained in respect of the Series A Units. We pay a service fee known as a "trailing commission" to your dealer out of the management fee payable by the Fund to Barrantagh either monthly or quarterly for ongoing services your dealer may provide to you in respect of your Series A Units, for as long as you hold Series A Units. The service fee is a percentage of the value of the Series A Units you hold and depends, in part, on the services that your dealer has confirmed to us it will provide. The management fee payable by the Fund to Barrantagh is the same regardless of the amount of service fees paid by Barrantagh. See "Dealer Compensation".

Series F Units are available to investors who have a fee-based account with their dealer who has signed an agreement with us. Instead of paying sales charges, investors buying Series F Units

pay fees to their dealer for investment advice and/or other services. We do not pay commissions to dealers in respect of Series F Units and can charge a lower management fee than Series A Units of the Fund. There are no sales charges when you purchase Series F Units. The minimum initial purchase of Series F Units is \$1,000 and subsequent investments must be at least \$200. A minimum account balance of \$600 must be maintained in respect of the Series F Units.

Series O Units are available to investors who have an account with us and enter into a fee agreement with us or whose dealer has entered into a Series O Units distribution agreement with us. There are no sales charges when you purchase Series O Units. No management fees are payable to us by the Fund; rather, the holder of the Series O Units pays management fees to us separately, as agreed to in our fee agreement with the holder or in our Series O Units distribution agreement with your dealer. Any minimum initial or subsequent investment requirements and any minimum account balance requirements which apply in the case of Series O Units will be specified in the fee agreement.

The purchase price for a unit is the applicable NAV per unit for that series. We calculate the NAV per unit at the close of business on each day that the Toronto Stock Exchange is open (each a **Valuation Day**). If we receive instructions in good order to buy units before 4:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on a Valuation Day, we will process the order using the NAV per unit calculated at the close of business that day. Otherwise, we will process the order using the NAV per unit calculated at the close of business on the next business day. For more details about how we calculate the net asset value of a unit, please refer to "*Valuation of Portfolio Securities*".

We have the right to restrict, reject or cancel, without any prior notice, any purchase order, including transactions that are deemed to represent inappropriate or excessive short-term trading. We must do so within one business day from the time we receive the order. If we refuse your order to purchase, we will immediately return any monies we received with your order.

If you are buying Units, you must generally include payment with your order. If we do not receive payment within three business days of processing your purchase order for any Units, we must redeem your Units on the next business day. If the proceeds from the redemption are greater than the payment you owe, the Fund keeps the difference. If the proceeds are less than the payment you owe, we will pay the difference to the relevant Fund on your behalf, and collect this amount together with additional costs from your dealer, who may in turn collect these amounts from you.

Switch Rights

You can switch your units of one series of the Fund to another series of units of the Fund, as long as you are eligible to hold that series. If you switch units of one series of the Fund to another series of the Fund, the value of your investment won't change (except for any fees you may pay to switch your units), but the number of units you hold will change. This is because each series of the Fund has a different unit value. If you are no longer eligible to hold a series of units we may switch your units to Series A Units, or such other series of units as agreed to by Barrantagh. Your dealer may charge you a fee to switch your units. Based in part on the current published administrative policies and assessing practices of the Canada Revenue Agency ("CRA"), a switch from one series of the Fund to another series of the Fund is generally not considered a disposition for tax purposes.

Redeeming Units of the Fund

You may redeem units of the Fund at any time so long as redemption rights have not been suspended. When redeeming Units of the Fund you should indicate whether you wish to redeem a specified dollar amount or number of Units. You may have to pay an administrative fee to your dealer for each redemption of Series A or Series F Units. Except as discussed under "When you may not be allowed to redeem your Units" below, we cannot refuse an order to redeem Units.

How We Process Your Redemption Order

In respect of any redemption, if we receive your order by 4:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on a Valuation Date, we will process it at the applicable NAV per Unit determined on such date. All Units that have been surrendered for redemption prior to 4:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on a Valuation Date will be deemed to be outstanding until (but not after) the close of business on that Valuation Date.

If we receive your redemption order after 4:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on a day that is a Valuation Date, or on a day which is not a Valuation Date, we will process it at the applicable NAV per Unit calculated on the next following Valuation Date. If the Toronto Stock Exchange closes earlier than 4:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on a Valuation Date, we may impose an earlier deadline for receipt of redemption orders. Payment of any redemption proceeds owing will be made within two Trading Days.

We may refuse to process your order if it is not in good order or if all necessary documents and/or information have not been received. If we process it anyway, and have not received all the necessary documentation and/or information needed to settle your redemption request within 10 Trading Days of a Valuation Date, we are required under securities legislation to purchase the equivalent number of Units you asked to be redeemed as of the close of business on the tenth business day. If the purchase price of those Units is less than your redemption price, the Fund will keep the difference. If the amount of the purchase price exceeds your redemption price, we will pay the difference to the Fund and may seek reimbursement from your dealer, together with additional costs. Your dealer may be entitled to recover these amounts from you.

You are responsible for tracking the adjusted cost base of your Units held outside a Registered Plan (as defined herein) and reporting to the CRA any capital gains or losses that you realize from redeeming Units. You should consult with your own tax advisor in respect of how to compute the adjusted cost base of your Units. If you hold your Units in a Registered Plan, tax may apply if you withdraw money from the plan.

When You Have to Redeem Units

The Fund may, but in the discretion of Barrantagh need not, redeem Units at their applicable series NAV per Unit if at any time the aggregate value of Units held by any Unitholder in the Fund is less than the minimum initial investment or minimum balance required of that investor. Before any such redemption is implemented, the Unitholder will be notified by Barrantagh that the value of the Units held is less than such minimum amount and allowed a period of 60 days to purchase additional Units in the Fund in an amount sufficient to increase the aggregate value of all Units held by the Unitholder in the Fund to at least such minimum amount, before any redemption is processed pursuant to this Section. Barrantagh may also redeem Units of a Unitholder at their applicable series NAV per Unit if at any time the continuation of the Unitholder as a Unitholder in the Fund is adverse in interest to the Fund as a whole or its other Unitholders.

If a Unitholder is or becomes a citizen or resident of the U.S. or a resident of any other foreign country or is or becomes a partnership other than a "Canadian partnership" (as defined in the *Tax Act*), we may require such investor to redeem the Units owned if continued participation in the Fund has the potential to cause adverse regulatory or tax consequences for the Fund or other Unitholders. See "*Non-Resident Unitholders*". We may redeem your Units if we are permitted or required to do so, including in connection with the termination of the Fund, in accordance with applicable law. If we redeem your Units, the effect will be the same as if you initiated the transaction.

When You May Not be Allowed to Redeem Your Units

The Fund may suspend your right to request a redemption of Units for all or part of a period when:

- (a) normal trading is suspended on a stock, options or futures exchange in Canada or outside Canada in which securities that make up more than 50% of the value or underlying exposure of the Fund's total assets are traded, and
- (b) those securities are not traded on any other exchange that represents a reasonable alternative for the Fund.

The Fund may postpone a redemption payment for any period during which your right to request a redemption is suspended under the circumstances described above or with the approval of the Canadian securities regulators. The Fund may not accept orders for the purchase of Units during any period when the redemption of its Units has been suspended.

Allocation of Capital Gains to Redeeming Unitholders

We may distribute, allocate and designate as payable to redeeming Unitholders capital gains realized by the Fund in connection with the disposition of securities required in order to fund a redemption. In addition, we may distribute, allocate and designate any capital gains of the Fund to a Unitholder who has redeemed Units during a year in an amount equal to the Unitholder's share, at the time of redemption, of the Fund's capital gains for the year. Any such distributions, allocations and designations will reduce the redemption price otherwise payable to the redeeming Unitholder. Subject to the 2024 Budget Proposals discussed under "Income Tax Considerations", based on certain rules in the Tax Act, an amount so allocated and designated to a redeeming Unitholder generally will only be deductible to the Fund to the extent of half of the gain that would otherwise be realized by the Unitholder on the redemption of Units.

Short Term Trading

Where investors make short-term trades in mutual fund securities, buying such securities one day and selling them a short time thereafter, there can be adverse effects on the other investors in the mutual fund. The mutual fund may incur additional trading costs in first purchasing portfolio securities with the short term investor's subscription funds, and then in selling portfolio securities to pay the proceeds of redemption to that investor, depending upon the mutual fund's cash position. Further, such an investor may enjoy the benefits of any capital appreciation incurred in the mutual fund without that investor's contribution actually being invested in time to contribute to that appreciation.

For this reason, we have the right to impose a short-term trading charge if units are redeemed within 60 days of the date of purchase. In determining whether such a fee is owing, units

purchased first will be deemed to be redeemed first. Such fee would generally not be charged if the reason for the early redemption was an unexpected change in personal or financial circumstances, or other legitimate reason, and was not part of a course of conduct of short-term trading. Where we detect repeated short-term trading occurring by an investor, in addition to charging the short-term trading fee, we may decline to accept future purchase orders from that investor. See "Fees and Expenses – Fees and Expenses Payable Directly by Unitholders".

Non-resident Unitholders

At no time may: (i) non-residents of Canada; (ii) partnerships that are not Canadian partnerships; or (iii) a combination of non-residents of Canada and such partnerships (all as defined in the Tax Act), be the beneficial owners of a majority of the units of the Fund (on a number of units or fair market value basis). Barrantagh may require declarations as to the jurisdictions in which a beneficial owner of units is resident and, if a partnership, its status as a Canadian partnership. If Barrantagh becomes aware, as a result of requiring such declarations as to beneficial ownership or otherwise, that the beneficial owners of 40% of the units of the Fund (on a number of units or fair market value basis) then outstanding are, or may be, non-residents and/or partnerships that are not Canadian partnerships, or that such a situation is imminent, Barrantagh may make a public announcement thereof. If Barrantagh determines that more than 40% of such units (on a number of units or fair market value basis) are beneficially held by non-residents and/or partnerships that are not Canadian partnerships, Barrantagh may send a notice to such non-resident Unitholders and partnerships, chosen in inverse order to the order of acquisition or in such manner as Barrantagh may consider equitable and practicable, requiring them to sell their units or a portion thereof within a specified period of not less than 30 days. If the Unitholders receiving such notice have not sold the specified number of units or provided Barrantagh with satisfactory evidence that they are not non-residents or partnerships other than Canadian partnerships within such period, Barrantagh may on behalf of such Unitholders sell such units and, in the interim, shall suspend the voting and distribution rights attached to such units. Upon such sale, the affected holders shall cease to be beneficial holders of units and their rights shall be limited to receiving the net proceeds of sale of such units.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Barrantagh may determine not to take any of the actions described above if Barrantagh has been advised by legal counsel that the failure to take any of such actions would not adversely impact the status of the Fund as a mutual fund trust for purposes of the Tax Act or, alternatively, may take such other action or actions as may be necessary to maintain the status of the Fund as a mutual fund trust for purposes of the Tax Act.

Fees and Expenses

The table below lists the fees and expenses that you may have to pay if you invest in the Fund. The Fund will pay some of these fees and expenses directly, which reduce the value of your investment in the Fund. You may also pay some of these fees and expenses directly.

Fees and Expenses Payable by the Fund

Management fees:

We are entitled to an annual management fee for acting as the manager of the Fund. The management fee covers fees for services we provide, or cause to be provided, to the Fund, including the investment management of the Fund, oversight of the service providers and general administration. This list is not exhaustive.

The management fee (including an amount equal to the trailing commission) in respect of Series A Units is paid by the Fund at a rate of 2% per annum of the Fund's NAV attributable to the Series A Units calculated daily, based on the average daily NAV and payable monthly in arrears. We can increase this fee on not less than 60 days' notice to holders of Series A Units.

The management fee in respect of Series F Units is paid by the Fund at a rate of 1.00% per annum of the Fund's NAV attributable to the Series F Units calculated daily, based on the average daily NAV and payable monthly in arrears. We can increase this fee on not less than 60 days' notice to holders of Series F Units.

The management fee in respect of Series O Units is negotiated between the Unitholder and Barrantagh at maximum rates of up to 1.00% per annum of the Fund's NAV attributable to the Series O Units calculated daily, based on the average daily NAV and payable either monthly or quarterly, and subject to review from time to time. The management fee in respect of the Series O Units is not paid by the Fund but by the Unitholder; see "Fees and Expenses Payable by Unitholders". Series O investors should consult their own tax advisors regarding the tax treatment of management fees paid directly by the investor.

Management fees are subject to applicable taxes, including GST and HST.

We may choose to absorb or waive some of the management fees incurred by the Fund. However, we are not required to do so, and we may discontinue this practice at any time and without notice to Unitholders.

Operating expenses:

The Fund pays its own operating expenses. These expenses include audit and accounting fees, custodial expenses, accounting and recordkeeping costs, legal expenses, prospectus preparation and filing costs (other than the cost of preparing the initial prospectus for the Fund), and other day-to-day operating expenses. The Fund also pays HST or GST (as applicable) on these expenses.

The Fund is also responsible for the fees and expenses of its Independent Review Committee (the "IRC"). Each member of the IRC is paid \$10,000 per annum and the Chairman is paid \$15,000 per annum.

Fees and Expenses Payable Directly by Unitholders

Sales charges: None.

Fee-Based Account

Fee

Series F Units of the Fund are generally only open to investors who have fee-based accounts with authorized brokers or dealers. Series F investors may be charged an investment advisory fee by their broker or

dealer. The amount of this advisory fee is negotiated between you and your broker or dealer.

Management fees:

Investors purchasing Series O Units must enter into an agreement with us or must purchase directly from a dealer who has entered into a Series O Units distribution agreement with us, pursuant to which a management fee, at a rate to be negotiated with us, is payable to us at maximum rates of up to 1.00% per annum of the Fund's NAV attributable to the Series O Units calculated daily, based on the average daily NAV and payable either monthly or quarterly, and subject to review from time to time. Payment is made through an automatic redemption of a sufficient number of Series O Units each month to pay the management fees owing.

Switch fees: Not applicable.

Redemption fees: None.

Short-term trading

fees:

The Fund may charge a short-term trading fee if you redeem your units within 60 days of the date of purchase in an amount of up to 2% of the

NAV of the redeemed units.

Impact of Sales Charges

The following table shows the amount of fees that you would have to pay if you made an investment of \$1,000 in the Fund, and if you held that investment in the Fund for one, three, five or 10 years and redeemed your units immediately before the end of each of those periods.

	At the time of purchase	1 year	3 years	5 years	10 years
Series A Units	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil
Series F Units	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil
Series O Units	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil

Dealer Compensation

How Your Investment Professional and Dealer are Paid

Your investment professional usually is the person through whom you purchase units of the Fund. Your investment professional could be a broker, financial planner or advisor who is registered to sell mutual funds. Your dealer is the firm for which your investment professional works.

Trailing Commission

We pay a service fee known as a "trailing commission" to your dealer either monthly or quarterly for ongoing services your dealer may provide to you in respect of your Series A Units. The service fee is a percentage of the value of the Series A Units you hold (see the table below for further

details) and depends, in part, on the services that your dealer has confirmed to us it will provide. We pay your dealer the service fee out of the management fee payable by the Fund to Barrantagh for as long as you hold Series A Units. The management fee payable by the Fund to Barrantagh is the same regardless of the amount of service fees paid by Barrantagh. We may change the terms of the service fee including the manner and frequency with which it is paid at any time. We may do this without informing you. Dealers typically pay a portion of the service fee they receive to their investment professionals for the services they provide to their clients.

Maximum Annual Trailing Commission	
Fund	Series A Units
Barrantagh Small Cap Canadian Equity Fund	1.0% (1)

Note:

(1) Plus applicable HST.

Income Tax Considerations

The following is a summary of the principal Canadian federal income tax considerations generally applicable to the Fund and to its Unitholders who at all relevant times are Registered Plans (as defined herein) or individuals (other than trusts) resident in Canada, who deal at arm's length and are not affiliated with the Fund and who hold their Units of the Fund as capital property, all within the meaning of the Tax Act.

Generally, Units of the Fund will be considered to be capital property to a Unitholder provided that the Unitholder does not hold such Units in the course of carrying on a business of buying and selling securities and has not acquired them in one or more transactions considered to be an adventure or concern in the nature of trade. Since the Fund is expected to qualify as a "mutual fund trust" at all times for purposes of the Tax Act, certain Unitholders of the Fund who might not otherwise be considered to hold Units of the Fund as capital property may, in certain circumstances, be entitled to have such Units and all other "Canadian securities" owned or subsequently acquired by them treated as capital property by making the irrevocable election permitted by subsection 39(4) of the Tax Act. This summary does not apply to a Unitholder of the Fund who has entered or will enter into a "derivative forward agreement" as that term is defined in the Tax Act with respect to the Units.

This summary is based upon the facts set out in this simplified prospectus, the current provisions of the Tax Act and an understanding of the administrative policies and assessing practices of the CRA that have been made publicly available prior to the date of this simplified prospectus. This summary takes into account specific proposals to amend the Tax Act publicly announced by the Minister of Finance (Canada) prior to the date hereof (the "**Proposed Amendments**"). There can be no assurance that the Proposed Amendments will be enacted in the form currently proposed or at all. Otherwise, this summary does not take into account or anticipate any changes in law or administrative policies or assessing practices, whether by legislative, governmental or judicial action or decision.

This summary is based on the assumption that at all times the Fund will comply with its investment restrictions and also on the assumption that the Fund will not, at any time, be a "SIFT trust" as defined in the rules in the Tax Act relating to the tax for SIFT trusts and SIFT partnerships (the "SIFT Rules"). One of the conditions for a trust to be a SIFT trust is that investments in the trust must be listed or traded on a stock exchange or other public market, which includes a trading

system or other organized facility on which securities that are qualified for public distribution are listed or traded, but does not include a facility that is operated solely to carry out the issuance of a security or its redemption, acquisition or cancellation by the issuer. No Units of the Fund are listed or traded on a stock exchange and the Manager understands that no Units of the Fund are listed or traded on any other public market. Based on that information, the Fund should not be considered a SIFT trust under the Tax Act.

This summary is of a general nature only and does not take into account the tax laws of any province or territory or of any jurisdiction outside Canada. It is not intended to be, nor should it be construed to be, legal or tax advice to any particular investor. Further, this summary does not describe the tax consequences relating to the deductibility of interest on money borrowed to acquire Units of the Fund. Investors are urged to consult with their own tax advisors for advice with respect to their particular circumstances.

For capital gains realized on or after June 25, 2024, Proposed Amendments released in connection with the 2024 Federal Budget (Canada) (the "2024 Budget Proposals") would generally increase the capital gains inclusion rate from one-half to two-thirds (i) for corporations and trusts, and (ii) for individuals to the extent that, generally, the aggregate amount of capital gains realized in the year, net of any capital losses realized in the year and any capital losses carried forward or back to the year, exceeds \$250,000. The 2024 Budget Proposals do not include comprehensive rules (including draft legislation) implementing the change to the capital gains inclusion rate. Accordingly, this summary does not address these proposals in detail. Unitholders who may be impacted by the 2024 Budget Proposals should consult their own tax advisors with respect to their particular circumstances.

Status of the Fund

This summary is based on the assumption that the Fund qualifies and will continue to qualify, at all times as a "mutual fund trust" within the meaning of the Tax Act and that the Fund has elected under the Tax Act to be a mutual fund trust from the date it was established. To qualify as a mutual fund trust, the Fund must satisfy various requirements including minimum distribution requirements relating to a particular class of the Units of the Fund. In addition, the Fund may not reasonably at any time be considered to be established or maintained primarily for the benefit of non-resident persons unless, at that time, substantially all of its property consists of property other than property that would be "taxable Canadian property" within the meaning of the Tax Act (if the definition of such term were read without reference to paragraph (b) of that definition). In the event the Fund were not to qualify as a mutual fund trust at all times, the income tax consequences described below would in some respects be materially and adversely different.

Taxation of the Fund

The Fund has elected to have a taxation year end of December 15. The Fund is subject to tax in each taxation year under Part I of the Tax Act on the amount of its net income for the taxation year, including net realized taxable capital gains, less the portion thereof that it deducts in respect of the amounts paid or payable to Unitholders in the calendar year in which the taxation year ends. An amount will be considered to be payable to a Unitholder in a taxation year if it is paid to the Unitholder in the calendar year in which the taxation year ends by the Fund (regardless of whether it is in cash or automatically invested in additional Units) or if the Unitholder is entitled in that calendar year to enforce payment of the amount. Pursuant to the Fund's Declaration, the annual net income (including net realized capital gains, less unapplied capital losses from prior years) of the Fund will be payable to Unitholders each year to the extent necessary so that the

Fund will not have any liability for tax under Part I of the Tax Act (after taking into account Capital Gains Refunds (as defined below) of the Fund).

The Fund will be entitled for each taxation year throughout which it is a mutual fund trust for purposes of the Tax Act to reduce (or receive a refund in respect of) its liability, if any, for tax on its net realized capital gains by an amount determined under the Tax Act based on the redemptions of Units during the year (the "Capital Gains Refund"). The Capital Gains Refund in a particular taxation year may not completely offset the tax liability of the Fund for such taxation year which may arise upon the sale or other disposition of securities in the Fund's portfolio in connection with the redemption of Units.

Upon the actual or deemed disposition of a security included in the Fund's portfolio, the Fund will generally realize a capital gain (or capital loss) to the extent the proceeds of disposition net of any reasonable costs of disposition exceed (or are less than) the adjusted cost base of such security unless the Fund were considered to be trading or dealing in securities or otherwise carrying on a business of buying and selling securities or the Fund has acquired the security in a transaction or transactions considered to be an adventure or concern in the nature of trade. The Fund purchases securities with the objective of receiving distributions and income thereon and takes the position that gains and losses realized on the disposition thereof are capital gains and capital losses. The Fund has made the election under subsection 39(4) of the Tax Act so that all securities included in the Fund's portfolio that are "Canadian securities" (as defined in the Tax Act) are deemed to be capital property to the Fund.

Subject to the 2024 Budget Proposals discussed above, one-half of any capital gains realized by the Fund in a taxation year on the disposition of securities included in the Fund's portfolio will be included in computing the income of the Fund as taxable capital gains for the year and one-half of any capital losses realized by the Fund in a taxation year must be deducted as allowable capital losses against taxable capital gains realized by the Fund for the year in accordance with the provisions of the Tax Act. Allowable capital losses for a taxation year of the Fund in excess of taxable capital gains for the year may be carried back and deducted in any of the three preceding taxation years or carried forward and deducted in any subsequent taxation year against taxable capital gains in accordance with the provisions of the Tax Act.

A loss realized by the Fund on a disposition of capital property will be a suspended loss for purposes of the Tax Act if the Fund, or a person affiliated with the Fund, acquires a property (a "substituted property") that is the same as or identical to the property disposed of, within 30 days before and 30 days after the disposition and the Fund, or a person affiliated with the Fund, owns the substituted property 30 days after the original disposition. If a loss is suspended, the Fund cannot deduct the loss from the Fund's capital gains until the substituted property is disposed of and is not reacquired by the Fund, or a person affiliated with the Fund, within 30 days before and after the disposition.

The Fund may enter into transactions denominated in currencies other than the Canadian dollar, including the acquisition of securities in its portfolio. The cost and proceeds of disposition of securities and all other amounts are determined for purposes of the Tax Act in Canadian dollars using appropriate exchange rates determined in accordance with the detailed rules in the Tax Act in that regard. In addition, the Fund is required to compute its net income and net realized capital gains in Canadian dollars in accordance with the detailed rules in the Tax Act and may, as a consequence, realize income or capital gains by virtue of changes in the value of the relevant foreign currency relative to the Canadian dollar.

The Fund may derive income or gains from investments in countries other than Canada, and as a result, may be liable to pay income or profits tax to such countries. To the extent that such foreign tax paid by the Fund exceeds 15% of the amount included in the Fund's income from such investments, such excess may generally be deducted by the Fund in computing its net income for the purposes of the Tax Act. To the extent that such foreign tax paid does not exceed 15% of such amount and has not been deducted in computing the Fund's income, the Fund may designate in respect of a Unitholder a portion of its foreign source income that can reasonably be considered to be part of the Fund's income distributed to such Unitholder so that such income and a portion of the foreign tax paid by the Fund may be regarded as foreign source income of, and foreign tax paid by, the Unitholder for the purposes of the foreign tax credit provisions of the Tax Act.

In computing its income for tax purposes, the Fund is required to include in its income for each taxation year any dividends received (or deemed to be received) by it in such year on a security included in the portfolio of the Fund.

The Tax Act provides that, in certain circumstances, a trust (other than a trust that throughout the taxation year is a mutual fund trust) may become liable for alternative minimum tax for the taxation year. Provided that the Fund is and remains a mutual fund trust throughout each taxation year, the Fund will not be liable for alternative minimum tax under the Tax Act. Further, pursuant to the 2024 Budget Proposals, trusts that qualify as "investment funds" are generally proposed to be exempt from alternative minimum tax for taxation years commencing on or after January 1, 2024.

The Tax Act provides for a special tax on the designated income of certain trusts (other than mutual fund trusts) that have designated beneficiaries. This tax does not apply in a taxation year to a trust that was a mutual fund trust within the meaning of the Tax Act throughout the year. The Manager anticipates that the Fund will be a mutual fund trust under the Tax Act throughout the taxation year and, accordingly, it is expected that the Fund will not have any liability with respect to this special tax.

The Fund is entitled to deduct an amount equal to the reasonable expenses that it incurs in the course of issuing Units. Such issue expenses paid by the Fund and not reimbursed will be deductible by the Fund rateably over a five-year period subject to reduction in any taxation year which is less than 365 days. In computing its income under the Tax Act, the Fund may deduct reasonable administrative and other expenses incurred to earn income.

The Fund is taxed as a single entity, notwithstanding that its Units are divided into series. Accordingly, the taxable income of the Fund will be determined for the Fund as a whole, taking into account all of the expenses (including management fees) of the Fund whether such expenses are common expenses or attributable to a particular series. In certain circumstances, this may result in expenses attributable to one series being used to reduce the income attributable to another series.

Taxation of Individual Unitholders

A Unitholder is generally required to include in computing income for purposes of the Tax Act the amount of any net income including net taxable capital gains of the Fund for each taxation year (computed prior to the deduction of amounts payable to the Unitholder for the year) which is paid or payable to the Unitholder in the calendar year in which such taxation year ends, whether such amount is reinvested in additional Units of the Fund or paid to the Unitholder in cash. The Declaration provides that the annual net income (including net realized capital gains less

unapplied capital losses from prior years) of the Fund for a taxation year will be paid to Unitholders in the calendar year in which such taxation year ends and distributed to the extent and in the manner described under "Taxation of the Fund". Any loss of the Fund for purposes of the Tax Act cannot be allocated to, and cannot be treated as a loss of, a Unitholder.

In general, provided the appropriate designations are made by the Fund, Unitholders will be subject to tax under the Tax Act on their allocated portion of dividends from taxable Canadian corporations, foreign source income and net taxable capital gains of the Fund for a year in the same manner as if such amounts had been received directly by the Unitholder. Accordingly, such amounts will generally retain their character and source for tax purposes, including for the purposes of determining a Unitholder's entitlement to the dividend tax credit and the foreign tax credit under the Tax Act. An enhanced gross-up and dividend tax credit is available on eligible dividends received from a corporation resident in Canada which are so designated by the Fund. Amounts designated as taxable dividends from taxable Canadian corporations or as net realized taxable capital gains will also be taken into account in determining the Unitholder's liability, if any, for alternative minimum tax under the Tax Act.

Under the Tax Act, the Fund is permitted to deduct in computing its income for a taxation year an amount that is less than the amount of its distributions of income for the calendar year to the extent necessary to enable the Fund to use, in that taxation year, losses from prior years without affecting the ability of the Fund to distribute its income annually. In such circumstances, the amount distributed to a Unitholder but not deducted by the Fund will not be included in the Unitholder's income. However, the adjusted cost base of the Unitholder's Units will be reduced by such amount. The non-taxable portion of the Fund's net realized capital gains for a taxation year, the taxable portion of which was designated in respect of a Unitholder for the taxation year, that is paid or becomes payable to the Unitholder for the year will not be included in computing the Unitholder's income for the year. Any other amount in excess of a Unitholder's share of the net income of the Fund for a taxation year that is paid or becomes payable to the Unitholder for the year (i.e., returns of capital) will not generally be included in the Unitholder's income for the year, but will reduce the adjusted cost base of the Unitholder's Units. To the extent that the adjusted cost base of a Unit to a Unitholder would otherwise be a negative amount, the negative amount will be deemed to be a capital gain and the adjusted cost base of the Unit to the Unitholder will be increased by the amount of such deemed capital gain to zero.

Upon the redemption or other disposition of a Unit, a Unitholder will realize a capital gain (or a capital loss) to the extent that the proceeds of disposition of the Unit (which do not include any amount of capital gains payable by the Fund to a redeeming Unitholder), net of any reasonable expenses of disposition (including redemption fees), exceed (or are exceeded by) the Unitholder's adjusted cost base of the Unit as determined for the purposes of the Tax Act.

The adjusted cost base of a Unit of a series of the Fund is generally equal to the total of all amounts that the Unitholder paid to purchase such Unit, plus the amount of any distributions on such Unit that were satisfied through the issuance of additional Units of that series or reinvested in additional Units of that series, less the adjusted cost base of any Units of that series previously redeemed by the Unitholder, less any distributions of capital on the Units of that series, with certain adjustments. For the purpose of determining the adjusted cost base of Units of a particular series to a Unitholder, when Units of that series are acquired, the cost of the newly acquired Units of that series will be averaged with the adjusted cost base of all Units of the same series owned by the Unitholder as capital property immediately before that time. The cost of Units acquired as a distribution from the Fund will generally be equal to the amount of the distribution.

Based in part on the current published administrative policies and assessing practices of the CRA, a switch from one series of the Fund to another series of the Fund is generally not considered a disposition for tax purposes.

Subject to the 2024 Budget Proposals discussed above, one-half of any capital gains realized by a Unitholder or taxable capital gains designated by the Fund in respect of a Unitholder in a taxation year of the Unitholder will be included in computing the income of the Unitholder as taxable capital gains for the year and one-half of any capital losses realized by the Unitholder in a taxation year of the Unitholder must be deducted as allowable capital losses against taxable capital gains for the year in accordance with the provisions of the Tax Act. Allowable capital losses for a taxation year of the Unitholder in excess of taxable capital gains for the year may be carried back and deducted in any of the three preceding taxation years or carried forward and deducted in any subsequent taxation year against taxable capital gains in accordance with the provisions of the Tax Act. Taxable capital gains realized by a Unitholder on a disposition of Units will be taken into account in determining the Unitholder's liability, if any, for alternative minimum tax under the Tax Act. A consolidation of Units following a distribution paid in the form of additional Units or automatic reinvestment of cash distributions will not be regarded as a disposition of Units and will not affect the aggregate adjusted cost base of Units to a Unitholder.

The Manager may distribute, allocate and designate as payable to redeeming Unitholders capital gains realized by the Fund in connection with the disposition of securities required in order to fund a redemption. In addition, the Manager may distribute, allocate and designate any capital gains of the Fund to a Unitholder who has redeemed Units during a year in an amount equal to the Unitholder's share, at the time of redemption, of the Fund's capital gains for the year. Any such distributions, allocations and designations will reduce the redemption price otherwise payable to the redeeming Unitholder. Subject to the 2024 Budget Proposals discussed above, based on certain rules in the Tax Act, an amount so allocated and designated to a redeeming Unitholder generally will only be deductible to the Fund to the extent of half of the gain that would otherwise be realized by the Unitholder on the redemption of Units.

Series O Unitholders should consult their own tax advisors regarding the tax treatment of management fees paid directly by the Unitholder.

Where the Fund pays or makes payable an amount after December 15 and before the end of the calendar year, such amount is deemed to have been paid or to have become payable at the end of the Fund's taxation year. Since capital gains of the Fund are paid and allocated only in the year that they are realized and income and net realized capital gains are distributed on a periodic basis, prospective purchasers acquiring Units of the Fund may incur tax on gains in the Fund that are unrealized, and gains that have been realized or income that has been earned by the Fund but not distributed at such time as the Units are acquired. Moreover, Unitholders who acquire their Units after December 15 and on or before December 31 of that year may incur tax on income earned or capital gains realized by the Fund for its taxation year ended December 15, before the Unitholder acquired the Units.

Units Held in Registered Plans

Provided the Fund qualifies as a "mutual fund trust" under the Tax Act, Units of the Fund will be "qualified investments" under the Tax Act for a trust governed by a registered retirement savings plan ("RRSP"), registered retirement income fund ("RRIF"), deferred profit sharing plan ("DPSP"), registered disability savings plan ("RDSP"), registered education savings plan ("RESP"), tax-free savings account ("TFSA"), or first home savings account ("FHSA", and each a "Registered")

Plan"). The proceeds of redemption of Units and amounts of income including net realized taxable capital gains distributed by the Fund to Registered Plans are generally not taxable while retained by such Registered Plans. Withdrawals from Registered Plans (other than a TFSA and certain withdrawals from an RDSP, RESP or FHSA) are generally subject to tax under the Tax Act. Investors are urged to consult with their own tax advisors regarding the implications of establishing, maintaining, amending, terminating or withdrawing amounts from a Registered Plan under the Tax Act.

The Units of the Fund will not be a "prohibited investment" for trusts governed by a TFSA, RDSP, RRSP, RRIF, RESP or FHSA unless the holder of the TFSA, RDSP or FHSA, annuitant under the RRSP or RRIF, or subscriber of the RESP, as applicable, (i) does not deal at arm's length with the Fund for purposes of the Tax Act, or (ii) has a "significant interest" as defined in the Tax Act in the Fund. Generally, a holder, annuitant or subscriber, as the case may be, will not have a significant interest in the Fund unless the holder, annuitant or subscriber, as the case may be, owns interests as a beneficiary under the Fund that have a fair market value of 10% or more of the fair market value of the interests of all beneficiaries under the Fund, either alone or together with persons and partnerships with which the holder, annuitant or subscriber, as the case may be, does not deal at arm's length. In addition, the Units of the Fund will not be a "prohibited investment" if such units are "excluded property" as defined in the Tax Act for trusts governed by a TFSA, RDSP, RRSP, RRIF, RESP or FHSA.

Holders, annuitants or subscribers should consult their own tax advisors with respect to whether Units of the Fund would be prohibited investments in their particular circumstances, including with respect to whether such Units would be excluded property.

Investors are responsible for complying with the relevant income tax legislation in acquiring or holding Units through a Registered Plan and the Fund assumes no liability to such persons as a result of making Units of the Fund available for investment.

International Information Reporting

The Tax Act includes provisions which implement the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development Common Reporting Standard (the "CRS Legislation") and the Canada-United States Enhanced Tax Information Exchange Agreement (the "IGA Legislation" and, together with the CRS Legislation, the "International Information Exchange Legislation"). Pursuant to the International Information Exchange Legislation, certain "Canadian financial institutions" (as defined in the International Information Exchange Legislation) are required to have procedures in place, in general terms, to identify accounts held by tax residents of foreign countries or by certain entities organized in, or the "controlling persons" of which are tax resident in, a foreign country (or, in the case of the U.S., of which the holder or any such controlling person is a citizen or tax resident, including U.S. persons not residing in the U.S.) and to report required information to the CRA. Under the International Information Exchange Legislation, Unitholders may be required to provide certain information including citizenship, tax residence and tax identification numbers. which information may be required to be reported to the CRA unless the investment is held within a Registered Plan (other than an FHSA). Such information is exchanged by the CRA on a reciprocal, bilateral basis with the countries in which the account holder or any such controlling person is tax resident (or of which such holder or person is a citizen or tax resident, where applicable), where such countries (including the U.S.) have agreed to a bilateral information exchange with Canada to which the International Information Exchange Legislation applies. On February 1, 2024, the CRA and the U.S. Internal Revenue Service signed a competent authority agreement stating that they intend to update an annex to the Canada-United States Enhanced Tax Information Exchange Agreement to exclude FHSAs from being reportable accounts under the IGA Legislation. Further, the Department of Finance (Canada) has released Proposed Amendments which would also exempt FHSAs from the CRS Legislation; however, there can be no assurance that such Proposed Amendments will be enacted as proposed. The CRA has indicated that information about FHSAs does not need to be reported for purposes of the IGA Legislation or the CRS Legislation at this time.

What Are Your Legal Rights?

Securities legislation in some provinces gives you the right to withdraw from an agreement to buy units within two business days of receiving the Simplified Prospectus or Fund Facts, or to cancel your purchase within 48 hours of receiving confirmation of its order.

Securities legislation in some provinces and territories also allows you to cancel an agreement to buy units and get your money back, or to make a claim for damages, if the Simplified Prospectus, Fund Facts or financial statements misrepresent any facts about the Fund. These rights must usually be exercised within certain time limits.

For more information, refer to the securities legislation of your province or territory, or consult your lawyer.

Certificate of the Fund and the Manager and Promoter Barrantagh Small Cap Canadian Equity Fund

Dated May 21, 2024

This simplified prospectus, and the documents incorporated by reference into this simplified prospectus, constitutes full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered by the simplified prospectus, as required by the securities legislation of each of the provinces of Canada and do not contain any misrepresentations.

(SIGNED) "WALTER KUSTERS"

(SIGNED) "MARINO SCARMOZZINO"

WALTER KUSTERS
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

MARINO SCARMOZZINO
VP FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION,
SIGNING IN THE CAPACITY OF A CFO

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BARRANTAGH INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT INC., as Manager and Promoter

(SIGNED) "JOE D'ANGELO"

(SIGNED) "JOHN D. VINNAİ"

Joe D'Angelo DIRECTOR

JOHN D. VINNAI DIRECTOR

Specific Information About Barrantagh Small Cap Canadian Equity Fund What is a mutual fund and what are the risks of investing in a mutual fund?

A mutual fund provides a convenient way for investors with similar investment goals to combine their money, which is then used to buy investments on behalf of all of the investors in the fund.

When we buy investments, we follow the investment objectives and investment strategies of the Fund. These are described later in this document. The price of a unit of a mutual fund is equal to its most recently calculated NAV and this value changes every day, depending on how the investments of the mutual fund are performing. When the investments of a mutual fund rise in value, the price of a unit of that mutual fund also goes up. When the investments of the mutual fund drop in value, the price of a unit of that mutual fund goes down.

Unitholders share a mutual fund's income, expenses, gains and losses in proportion to their units in the mutual fund.

There are many potential advantages of investing in mutual funds, but there are also some risks you should be aware of. Some of the risks that are common to all mutual fund investments are discussed in this section. For the specific risks relating to the Fund, see "What are the Risks of Investing in the Fund".

Risks Common to All Mutual Funds

Investing in mutual funds is not like putting your money in a savings account. Unlike a savings account or a GIC, neither the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation nor any other government deposit insurer insures your investment in units of a mutual fund. Furthermore, the full amount of your investment in a mutual fund is not guaranteed.

Mutual funds own different types of investments, depending upon their investment objectives and strategies. The value of a mutual fund may change each day as the value of those investments change, reflecting changes in interest rates, economic conditions and stock market and company news. As a result, the value of units of a fund goes up and down, and when you sell your units, you may receive more or less than the amount you invested when you bought those units.

Units of a fund are generally redeemable each business day. This means the fund will effectively repurchase these units from you, and pay you the applicable NAV per unit. But in exceptional circumstances a fund will not accept any orders to redeem units. These circumstances are explained under "Purchases, Switches and Redemptions" herein.

Most securities owned by a mutual fund can be sold easily and at a fair price. In highly volatile markets, certain securities may become less liquid, which means they cannot be sold as quickly or easily. Some securities may be illiquid because of legal restrictions, the nature of the investment, certain features, like guarantees or a lack of purchasers interested in the particular security or market. Difficulty in selling securities may result in a loss or reduced return for the fund.

Fund Details

Type of Fund:	Small cap Canadian equity fund.
Date Fund was First Offered by way of Prospectus:	April 15, 2019. ⁽¹⁾
Nature of Securities Offered:	Series A, Series F and Series O Units of a mutual fund trust.
Registered Plan Eligibility:	Yes.

⁽¹⁾ The Fund was established on April 15, 2019; Series F and Series O Units were first offered by the Fund's simplified prospectus dated April 15, 2019. Series A Units were first offered by the Fund's simplified prospectus dated April 30, 2021.

What Does the Fund Invest in?

Investment Objective

The Fund's investment objective is to outperform the S&P/TSX Small Cap Canadian equity index over market cycles. The Fund primarily invests in common shares within the small cap area of the Canadian market.

The Fund's fundamental investment objectives may not be changed without the prior approval of the majority of its Unitholders, who vote at a meeting called for that purpose.

Investment Strategies

Barrantagh pursues a disciplined fundamental approach that seeks to identify companies that can combine a dominant business profile with proven management and a financial profile that can be independently analyzed. A rigorous five-step process guides a stock's progress from a proprietary full-cycle company snapshot analysis through establishing the initial thesis, management interviews, financial modeling and decision making. Barrantagh's philosophy is to create a concentrated portfolio of high quality and sustainable businesses with an aim of generating superior long-term risk adjusted returns.

Cash and cash equivalents will not exceed 25% of the Fund's NAV. The Fund will hold a minimum of 15 and a maximum of 60 stocks at any time.

No more than 45% of the Fund's portfolio will be invested in equity securities of non-Canadian issuers.

The Fund will not borrow money, sell securities short or use derivatives. It may enter into securities lending transactions to generate income.

Investment Restrictions

The Fund is subject to and will observe the standard investment restrictions and practices of applicable Canadian securities legislation including, in particular, Part 2 of National Instrument 81-102 *Investment Funds* ("NI 81-102"). These investment restrictions are designed in part to ensure that the investments of the Fund are well diversified and relatively liquid, and to ensure the proper administration of the Fund.

The fundamental investment objectives of the Fund referred to under "Name, Formation and History of the Fund" above may not be changed without the approval of the votes of a majority of the Unitholders voting at a meeting called for the purpose of considering such change.

Additional Tax-Related Investment Restrictions

The Fund is a "mutual fund trust" for purposes of the Tax Act. Provided the Fund continues to qualify as a mutual fund trust, the Units, if issued on the date hereof, would be "qualified investments" (as that term is defined in the Tax Act) for trusts governed by Registered Plans. The Fund has not engaged and will not engage in any undertaking other than the investment of its funds in property for the purposes of the Tax Act. See "Income Tax Considerations – Units Held in Registered Plans".

In addition to the investment restrictions under NI 81-102 and other applicable securities laws, the Fund will be subject to the following tax-related investment restrictions, which provide that the Fund shall not:

- (a) invest in or hold (i) securities of or an interest in any non-resident entity, an interest in or a right or option to acquire such property, or an interest in a partnership which holds any such property if the Fund (or the partnership) would be required to include any significant amounts in income pursuant to section 94.1 of the Tax Act, (ii) an interest in a trust (or a partnership which holds such an interest) which would require the Fund (or the partnership) to include significant amounts in income in connection with such interest pursuant to the rules in section 94.2 of the Tax Act, or (iii) any interest in a non-resident trust (or a partnership which holds such an interest) other than an "exempt foreign trust" for the purposes of section 94 of the Tax Act;
- (b) invest in any security that would be a "tax shelter investment" within the meaning of section 143.2 of the Tax Act;
- (c) invest in any security of an issuer that would be a "controlled foreign affiliate" of the Fund for purposes of the Tax Act;
- (d) enter into any arrangement (including the acquisition of securities for the portfolio of the Fund) where the result is a "dividend rental arrangement" for the purposes of the Tax Act; or
- (e) make any investment or conduct any activity that would result in the Fund failing to qualify or ceasing to qualify as a "mutual fund trust" for purposes of the Tax Act or acquire any property that would be "taxable Canadian property" of the Fund as such term is defined in the Tax Act (if the definition were read without reference to paragraph (b) thereof).

If the Fund becomes a "registered investment" under the Tax Act, it will not acquire an investment that is not a "qualified investment" under the Tax Act if, as a result thereof, it would become subject to tax under Part X.2 of the Tax Act.

Description of Units Offered by the Fund

The interests in the Fund are divided into three series of Units: Series A Units, Series F Units and Series O Units. The Fund is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Units of each series.

Series A Units are generally available to all investors. Series F Units are available to investors who have a fee-based account with their dealer, who has signed an agreement with us. Series O Units are available to investors who have an account with us and enter into a fee agreement with us or whose dealer has entered into a Series O Units distribution agreement with us. No management fees are payable to us by the Fund in respect of Series O Units; rather, the holder of the Series O Units pays management fees to us separately, as agreed to in such fee agreement with the holder or in such Series O Units distribution agreement with the holder's dealer. There are no sales charges when you purchase Series A Units, Series F Units or Series O Units. Series O investors should consult their own tax advisors regarding the tax treatment of management fees paid directly by the investor.

As a Unitholder of the Fund, you are generally entitled to participate *pro rata* in the net income and net capital gains of the Fund that are attributable to the Units you hold. On liquidation, you are entitled to participate *pro rata* in the net assets of the Fund remaining after satisfaction of outstanding liabilities that are attributable to the Units you hold. You may not transfer or assign Units but may redeem your Units on demand. You have no ownership rights in any assets of the Fund. As a Unitholder, you have no special rights to buy other Units.

Meetings of Unitholders and Unit Voting Rights

A meeting of the Unitholders voting as a single series (unless the circumstances are such that one series is affected differently from the other, in which case the holders of each series of Units of the Fund will vote separately) may be called at any time by Barrantagh. Except as otherwise required or permitted by law, notice of meetings of Unitholders will be given not less than 21 days nor more than 50 days before the meeting. At any meeting of Unitholders, a quorum shall consist of two or more Unitholders present in person or by proxy. If no quorum is present at such meeting within one-half hour after the time fixed for the holding of such meeting, the meeting shall stand adjourned and will be held at the same time and place on the day which is not less than five days later. Unitholders present in person or represented by proxy at such an adjourned meeting will constitute a quorum.

Matters Requiring Unitholders' Approval

As required by NI 81-102, a meeting of the Unitholders of the Fund will be called to approve certain changes as follows:

- (a) the basis of the calculation of a fee or expense that is charged to the Fund is changed in a way that could result in an increase in charges to the Fund, except where:
 - the Fund is at arm's length to the person or company charging the fee or expense;
 - (ii) the Unitholders have received at least 60 days' notice of this before the effective date of the change; and
 - (iii) the right to notice described in (ii) is disclosed in the prospectus of the Fund;

- (b) a fee or expense is introduced that is to be charged to the Fund or directly to its Unitholders by the Fund or Barrantagh in connection with the holding of units of the Fund that could result in an increase in charges to the Fund or its Unitholders, except where:
 - (i) the Fund is at arm's length to the person or company charging the fee or expense;
 - (ii) the Unitholders have received at least 60 days' notice of this before the effective date of the change; and
 - (iii) the right to notice described in (ii) is disclosed in the prospectus of the Fund;
- (c) the manager is changed, unless the new manager of the Fund is an affiliate of Barrantagh;
- (d) the fundamental investment objectives of the Fund are changed;
- (e) the Fund decreases the frequency of the calculation of the NAV per Unit;
- (f) the Fund undertakes a reorganization with, or transfers its assets to, another mutual fund, if the Fund ceases to continue after the reorganization or transfer of assets and the transaction results in the Unitholders of the Fund becoming Unitholders in the other mutual fund, unless:
 - (i) the IRC has approved the change;
 - (ii) the Fund is being reorganized with, or its assets are being transferred to, another mutual fund to which NI 81-102 and NI 81-107 apply and that is managed by Barrantagh, or an affiliate of Barrantagh;
 - (iii) the Unitholders have received at least 60 days' notice before the effective date of the change;
 - (iv) the right to notice described in (iii) is disclosed in the prospectus of the Fund; and
 - (v) the transaction complies with certain other requirements of applicable Canadian securities legislation;
- (g) the Fund undertakes a reorganization with, or acquires assets from, another mutual fund, if the Fund continues after the reorganization or acquisition of assets, the transaction results in the Unitholders of the other mutual fund becoming Unitholders of the Fund, and the transaction would be a material change to the Fund; or
- (h) any other matter which is required by law applicable to the Fund or otherwise to be submitted to a vote of the Unitholders of the Fund.

Approval of Unitholders will be deemed to have been given if expressed by resolution passed at a meeting of Unitholders duly called and held for the purpose of considering the same, by at least

a majority of the votes cast. Unitholders are entitled to one vote per unit, as the case may be, held on the record date established for voting at any meeting of Unitholders.

The Fund may, without Unitholder approval, enter into a merger or other similar transaction that has the effect of combining the Fund or its assets (a "Permitted Merger") with any other investment fund or funds managed by Barrantagh or an affiliate that have investment objectives that are substantially similar to those of the Fund, subject to:

- (a) approval of the merger by the IRC;
- (b) compliance with certain merger pre-approval conditions set out in section 5.6 of NI 81-102; and
- (c) written notice being given to Unitholders at least 60 days before the effective date of the merger.

In connection with a Permitted Merger, the merging funds will be valued at their respective NAVs for the purpose of such transaction.

In addition, the auditor of the Fund may not be changed unless the IRC has approved the change and Unitholders have received at least 60 days' notice before the effective date of the change.

The Declaration may be amended without the consent of or prior notice to Unitholders for the purposes of continuing compliance with applicable law and requirements of any governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Fund; maintaining the status of the Fund under the Tax Act as a "unit trust" and/or "mutual fund trust"; making amendments or adjustments in response to any existing or proposed amendments to the Tax Act or its administration which might otherwise adversely affect the tax status of the Fund or its Unitholders; providing that the Fund will not be taxable on any of its income for a fiscal year under Part I of the Tax Act; correcting ambiguities, defective or inconsistent provisions, clerical omissions, mistakes or manifest errors; establishing one or more new funds; changing the name of the Fund or any new fund; creating additional classes or series of Units and redesignating existing classes or series of Units, unless the rights attaching to such Units are adversely changed or affected thereby; or providing additional protection to Unitholders.

Name, Formation and History of the Fund

The Fund is a trust established under the laws of Ontario on April 15, 2019 by a declaration of trust (the "**Declaration**") as amended on April 30, 2021 to, among other things, reflect the addition of Series A Units made by Barrantagh as trustee. The principal office of the Fund is located at the offices of Barrantagh, 100 Yonge Street, Suite 1700, Toronto, Ontario M5C 2W1.

The Fund's investment objective is to outperform the S&P/TSX Small Cap Canadian equity index over market cycles. The Fund primarily invests in common shares within the small cap area of the Canadian market.

What are the Risks of Investing in the Fund?

In addition to the general risks of investing in any mutual fund disclosed above, the following are certain specific investment risks relating to the Fund.

Additional Risks Applicable to the Fund

Market Risk: Market risk is the risk of being invested in the equity markets. The market value of the Fund's investments will rise and fall based on specific company developments and broader equity or fixed income market conditions. Market value will also vary with changes in the general economic and financial conditions in countries where the investments are based.

Market Disruptions Risk: War and occupation, terrorism and related geopolitical risks may in the future lead to increased short-term market volatility and may have adverse long-term effects on world economies and markets generally, including U.S., Canadian, European and other economies and securities markets. For example, the spread of coronavirus disease (COVID-19) caused a slowdown in the global economy and volatility in global financial markets. COVID-19 or any other disease outbreak may adversely affect the performance of the Fund. The effects of future terrorist acts (or threats thereof), military action, war, conflict or similar unexpected disruptive events on the economies and securities markets of countries cannot be predicted. These events could also have an acute effect on individual issuers or related groups of issuers. These risks could also adversely affect securities markets, inflation and other factors relating to value of the portfolio of the Fund.

Upon the occurrence of a natural disaster such as flood, hurricane, or earthquake, or upon an incident of war, riot or civil unrest or disease outbreak, the impacted country may not efficiently and quickly recover from such event, which could have a materially adverse effect on borrowers and other developing economic enterprises in such country.

No Assurance of Achieving Investment Objectives: There can be no assurances that the Fund will be able to achieve its investment objectives. Changes in the Canadian equity markets may have a negative effect on the shares and other securities the Fund has invested in, which in turn affect the Fund's value and may prevent the Fund from realizing its objectives.

Small Company Risk: The Fund will generally invest in the equity securities of small sized companies. Investments in small capitalization companies may be more volatile than investments in larger companies, as they generally experience higher growth and higher failure rates. The trading volume of these securities is normally lower than that of larger companies. Such securities may be less liquid than other securities, which may make it more difficult to buy or sell such securities at a particular time or at a particular price. Changes in the demand for these securities generally have a disproportionate effect on market price of such securities, tending to make the prices for such securities rise more in response to an increase in interest and to fall more in response to a lack of interest in such securities. There can be no assurance that the use of such securities will result in any gains for the Fund.

Multiple series Risk: The Fund currently offers three series of units. The Fund may in the future offer additional classes or series of units. Each class or series has its own fees and expenses, which are tracked separately. Those fees and expenses will be deducted in calculating the NAV per unit for that class or series, thereby reducing the NAV per unit. If one series or class is unable to pay its expenses or liabilities, the Fund is legally responsible to pay those expenses and, as a result, the NAV per unit of the other class or series may also be reduced.

Securities Lending: The Fund may engage in securities lending. Although the Fund will receive collateral if it lends securities and such collateral will be marked-to-market, the Fund will be exposed to the risk of loss should the borrower default on its obligation to return the borrowed securities and/or if the collateral is insufficient to reconstitute the portfolio of loaned securities.

Tax Risk: If the Fund ceases to qualify as a mutual fund trust under the Tax Act, the income tax considerations described under "Income Tax Considerations" would be materially and adversely different in certain respects. There can be no assurance that Canadian federal income tax laws and the administrative policies and assessing practices of the CRA respecting the treatment of mutual fund trusts will not be changed in a manner which adversely affects Unitholders of the Fund.

In determining its income for tax purposes, the Fund treats gains or losses on the disposition of securities in the portfolio of the Fund as capital gains and losses. Designations with respect to the Fund's income and capital gains will be made and reported to Unitholders of the Fund on the foregoing basis. The CRA's practice is not to grant advance income tax rulings on the characterization of items as capital gains or income and no advance income tax ruling has been requested or obtained. If these dispositions or transactions of the Fund are determined not to be on capital account, the net income of the Fund for tax purposes and the taxable component of distributions to Unitholders of the Fund could increase. Any such redetermination by the CRA may result in the Fund being liable for unremitted withholding taxes on prior distributions made to Unitholders who were not resident in Canada for purposes of the Tax Act at the time of the distribution. Such potential liability may reduce the net asset value of the Fund and/or net asset value per Unit.

The Fund may invest in foreign securities. Many foreign countries preserve their right under domestic tax laws and applicable tax conventions with respect to taxes on income and on capital ("**Tax Treaties**") to impose tax on dividends and interest paid or credited to persons who are not resident in such countries. While the Fund intends to make its investments in such a manner as to mitigate the amount of foreign taxes incurred under foreign tax laws and subject to any applicable Tax Treaties, investments in selected foreign securities may subject the Fund to foreign taxes on dividends and interest paid or credited to the Fund or any gains realized on the disposition of such securities.

Pursuant to rules in the Tax Act, if the Fund experiences a "loss restriction event", it will (i) be deemed to have a year-end for tax purposes (which would result in an unscheduled distribution of the Fund's net income and net realized capital gains, if any, at such time to Unitholders so that the Fund is not liable for income tax on such amounts under Part I of the Tax Act), and (ii) become subject to the loss restriction rules generally applicable to a corporation that experiences an acquisition of control, including a deemed realization of any unrealized capital losses and restrictions on its ability to carry forward losses. Generally, the Fund will be subject to a loss restriction event if a person becomes a "majority-interest beneficiary", or a group of persons becomes a "majority-interest group of beneficiaries", of the Fund, as those terms are defined in the affiliated persons rules contained in the Tax Act, with certain modifications. Generally, a majority-interest beneficiary of the Fund is a beneficiary in the income or capital, as the case may be, of the Fund whose beneficial interests, together with the beneficial interests of persons and partnerships with whom the beneficiary is affiliated, have a fair market value that is greater than 50% of the fair market value of all the interests in the income or capital, as the case may be, of the Fund. Please see "Income Tax Considerations" for the tax consequences of an unscheduled or other distribution to Unitholders.

Trusts that qualify as "investment funds" as defined in the rules in the Tax Act relating to loss restriction events are generally excepted from the application of such rules. An "investment fund" for this purpose includes a trust that meets certain conditions, including satisfying certain of the conditions necessary to qualify as a "mutual fund trust" for purposes of the Tax Act, not using any property in the course of carrying on a business and complying with certain asset diversification

requirements. If the Fund were not to qualify as an "investment fund", it could potentially have a loss restriction event and thereby become subject to the related tax consequences described above.

Investment Risk Classification Methodology

We assign a risk rating to the Fund as a guide to help you decide whether to invest in the Fund. The investment risk level of the Fund is required to be determined in accordance with a standardized risk classification methodology that is based on the Fund's historical volatility as measured by the 10-year standard deviation of the returns of the Fund.

The Fund was created on April 15, 2019. As the Fund has less than 10 years of performance history, we will use the actual performance of the Fund for the period of time it has been in existence and the return for an appropriate reference index or blend of reference indices for the remainder of the 10 year period. The reference index we use to calculate the risk rating for the Fund is the S&P/TSX Small Cap Canadian equity index. As the Fund is new, the current investment risk level of the Fund is based on the reference index.

The standardized risk classification methodology that we use to identify the investment risk level of the Fund is available at no cost by calling us or writing to us at the telephone number and address set out on the last page of this simplified prospectus.

Who Should Invest in this Fund?

The Fund is suitable for investors who want to be part of a fund which invests in a relatively concentrated portfolio of small capitalization Canadian companies with high growth potential and are comfortable with a high level of investment risk. You will find an explanation of the risk classification we use under "What are the Risks of Investing in the Fund – Investment Risk Classification Methodology" above. The Fund may not be appropriate for an investor who needs regular income or stability of principal, or is pursuing a short-term investment goal.

Distribution Policy

The Fund will pay such distributions as we in our discretion may determine from time to time; provided that on an annual basis, the Fund will pay such distributions, if any, as are necessary to ensure that the Fund is not subject to non-refundable income tax under Part I of the Tax Act. Distributions are automatically reinvested in additional units of the Fund, unless you have previously notified us in writing that you want to receive all or any portion of them in cash.

Barrantagh Small Cap Canadian Equity Fund

Additional information about the Fund is or will be available in the Fund's Fund Facts, annual and interim management reports of fund performance and annual and interim financial statements. These documents as they become available are incorporated by reference into this Simplified Prospectus, which means that they legally form part of this document just as if they were printed as part of this document.

You can get a copy of these documents, at your request and at no cost, by calling us toll-free at 1-833-246-8468, by writing to us at the address below or emailing us at info@barrantagh.com, or from your dealer.

These documents and other information about the Fund are available at our website at www.Barrantagh.com, or through SEDAR+ (the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval) at www.sedarplus.com.

Barrantagh Investment Management Inc. 100 Yonge Street, Suite 1700 Toronto, Ontario M5C 2W1 Telephone 416-868-6295

1416-0561-5115.7